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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Cost of revenues (including amortization and impaints of feature film
production assets of $1,372 and $1,085, respegtiaatl $7,446 and
$5,644, respectively) 96,85¢ 85,48« 171,72: 153,88:

Depreciation and amortization 6,08¢ 4,821 11,31¢ 8,73¢

Investment income, net 39C 54t 83¢ 1,04

Other expense, net (38¢) (1,049 (1,739 (543

Provision for income taxes 3,17¢ 6,75¢ 4,96¢ 7,967

Basic 74,82: 74,48¢ 74,81(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized holding gain/(loss) - available-for-sségurities (net of tax
(benefit)/expense of ($267) and $382, respectivaiy, ($274) and $480,
respectively) (43¢) 622

(44¢) 782

574 842

Total other comprehensive (loss) income

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

As of

December 31,
June 30, 2013 2012

CURRENT ASSETS:

Short-term investments, net 78,82¢ 86,32¢

of $11,513 and $14,691, respectively) 57,12« 50,71¢

Deferred income tax assets 12,87¢ 14,40:

Total current assets 205,66¢ 234,53

FEATURE FILM PRODUCTION ASSETS, NET 23,60: 23,69:

INVESTMENT SECURITIES 7,85¢ 5,22(

©

TOTAL ASSETS 362,49¢ $ 381,38!

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Deferred income 23,64! 28,61

NON-CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 9,811 9,09:

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

30,191,977 and 29,253,665 shares issued and aditsfjaas of

Class B convertible common stock: ($.01 par vafiigd00,000 shares authorized;

June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively) 44€ 45k

Accumulated other comprehensive income 3,40¢ 4,031

Total stockholders’ equity 287,35! 294,72¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
Accumulated
Common Stock Additional Other
Class A Class B Paid - in Comprehensive  Accumulated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Total

Net income — — — — — — 8,21¢ 8,21¢

Stock issuances, net 68 — — 251 — — 251

Tax effect from stock-based
payment arrangements — — — 13 — — a3

Stock-based compensation

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashdus)/provided by operating

Amortization and impairments of feature film protion assets

Amortization of bond premium 1,08¢ 1,15¢

Stock-based compensation 2,75¢ 1,75¢€

Services provided in exchange for equity instrureent (439) —

Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes 2,16¢ (2,507

Cash (used in)/provided by changes in operatingtassd liabilities:

Inventory 43 (18)

Feature film production assets (5,100 (5,327)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (10,38) 2,441

Net cash provided by operating activities 5,89: 44,73¢

Purchases of property and equipment and othersasset (13,139 (17,549

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 23,06: 19,61¢

Proceeds from sales of property and equipment 3€ —

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Dividends paid (17,95¢) (17,87Y

Issuance of stock, net 32¢ 452

Net cash used in financing activities (18,300 (18,03¢)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 66,04¢ 52,49

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING TRANSACTIONS:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Description

The accompanying consolidated financial statemigiciside the accounts of WWE. “WWHefers to World Wrestling Entertainment, |
and its subsidiaries, unless the context otherwgspiires. References to “we,” “us,” “our” and th€dmpany” refer to WWE and i
subsidiaries. We are an integrated media and airtarent company, principally engaged in the develapt, production and marketing
television, pay-pewiew event programming, live events, feature fildisensing of various WWE themed products and e sf consumt
products featuring our brands. Our operations egardzed around four principal activities:

Live and Televised Entertainment

» Revenues consist principally of ticket sales t@ lavents, sales of merchandise at these live evefasision rights fees, integra
sponsorships fees, and fees for viewing our pay+j@v and video-on-demand programming.

Consumer Products

* Revenues consist principally of sales of WWE pradlicontent via home entertainment platforms, magazales and royalties
license fees related to various WWE themed prodiwath as video games, toys and apparel.

Digital Media

* Revenues consist principally of advertising saleor websites, rights fees received for digitatteat, sale of merchandise on
website through our WWEShop internet storefront salds of various broadband and mobile content.

WWE Studios
* Revenues consist of amounts earned from the disiib of filmed entertainmen

All intercompany balances are eliminated in comilon. The accompanying consolidated financiatestents are unaudited. .
adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjestts) considered necessary for a fair presentafidimancial position, results of operatic
and cash flows at the dates and for the periodsepted have been included. The results of opesatibany interim period are not necessi
indicative of the results of operations for thd fidar.

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptedhia United States of America requ
our management to make estimates and assumptianaftect the reported amounts of assets anditiabiland disclosures of contingent as
and liabilities at the date of the financial stagens and the reported amounts of revenue and expelusing the reporting period. Actual res
could differ from those estimates.

Certain information and note disclosures normaibiided in annual financial statements have beadawsed or omitted from these inte
financial statements; these financial statementsilshbe read in conjunction with the financial etaents and notes thereto included in
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 .

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In February 2013, the Financial Accounting Standddard ("FASB") issued an accounting standardsigpdn the reporting of amou
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehersiseme, to improve the transparency of reportifitese reclassifications present the ef
on the line items of net income of significant amizureclassified out of accumulated other comprsiwenincomebut only if the iter
reclassified is required under U.S. GAAP to beassified to net income in its entirety in the sasy@orting period. We adopted this accour
standards update on January 1, 2013 which didana b material effect on our consolidated finarsialements.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

In October 2012, the FASB issued an accountingdstals update to amend the requirements relatech tinpairment assessment
unamortized film costs and clarify when unamortiZdch costs should be assessed for impairment. ipeate revises the impairm
assessment to remove the rebuttable presumptiorihghaonditions leading to the writdf of unamortized film costs after the balancee
date existed as of the balance sheet date. Thaeuplda eliminates the requirement that an emitpiporate into fair value measurements
in impairment tests the effects of any changesiimates resulting from the consideration of subsatjevidence, if the information would
have been considered by market participants atnssurement date. This standard update is effeftivienpairment assessments perfori
on or after December 15, 2012. We adopted thiswatow standards update for our film impairmenteasment as of December 31, 2
which did not have a material effect on our cordatd financial statements for the periods presemeein.

In December 2011, the FASB issued an accountinglatas update that expands the disclosure requitsmar the offsetting of assets
liabilities related to certain financial instrumerand derivative instruments. The update requirdadures to present both gross informe
and net information for financial instruments anefridative instruments that are eligible for net gengtation due to a right of offset,
enforceable master netting arrangement or simgegeanent. We adopted this accounting standardgeipdeof January 1, 2013 which did
have a material effect on our consolidated findrat@ements.

2. Stock-based Compensation

Restricted Stock Unit

Stockbased compensation costs associated with our atestrstock units ("RSUs") are determined using feie market value of tt
Companys common stock on the date of the grant. Thesa emstrecognized over the requisite service persig the graded vesting meth
net of estimated forfeitures. RSUs typically havihigeyear service requirement and vest in equal anmstdliments and are granted ur
our 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the "Plan"). UneeRkRSUs accrue dividend equivalents at the sateeagaare paid on our shares of Cla
common stock. The dividend equivalents are sultjettte same vesting schedule as the underlying RSUs

The following table summarizes RSUs activity:

Weighted-
Average Grant-
Units Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2013 146,170 $ 9.97
Granted 38,477 $ 8.7¢
Vested (22,2260 $ 11.2(
Forfeited (15,379 $ 9.2¢
Dividends equivalents 3,661 $ 9.2¢
Unvested at June 30, 2013 150,70t g 9.4C

Performance Stock Unit:

Stockbased compensation costs associated with our pgafare stock units ("PSUs") are initially determinesihg the fair market value
the Companys common stock on the date the awards are apptowedir Compensation Committee (service inceptioe)dand are grant
under the Plan. The vesting of these PSUs are dulpjeertain performance conditions and a serrgcgiirement of three and one half ye
Until such time as the performance conditions aet, stock compensation costs associated with tR&tés are reneasured each report
period based upon the fair market value of the Gomijs common stock and the probability of attaintn@m the reporting date. Stc
compensation costs for our PSUs are recognizedtheerequisite service period using the gradedngshethod, net of estimated forfeitul
Unvested PSUs accrue dividend equivalents oncepdinfermance conditions are met at the same ratreapaid on our shares of Clas
common stock. The dividend equivalents are sulbjettie same vesting schedule as the underlying PSUs
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

(Unaudited)
The following table summarizes PSUs activity:
Weighted-
Average Grant-
Units Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2013 685,70 % 0.01
Granted 932,78t % 10.0¢
Forfeited (63,519 % 9.2¢
Dividends equivalents 20,22¢ % 0.01
Unvested at June 30, 2013 157519 ¢ 9.5€

During the year ended 2012, we awarded 622F80s which were subject to certain performance itiond. During the three mont
ended March 31, 2013, the performance conditions weet and we granted 709,186 PSUs at a weighewdge grant date fair value of $8.46
During three months ended March 31, 2013, we awh8iel,896PSUs which are subject to certain performance tiomdi which have n
been met as of June 30, 2013.

Stock-based compensation costs totaled $1,543 Bod Bfor the three months ended June 30, 2012612 , respectively, and $2,788¢
$1,756 for the six months ended June 30, 2013 &d 2respectively.

3. Segment Information

As discussed in Note 1, the Company classifiegperations into four reportable segments: Live &ntbvised Entertainment, Consui
Products, Digital Media and WWE Studios.

Beginning in the first quarter of 2013, the Compamgde changes to its operating plan and manageemntting to reflect a change in
measurement used by management to evaluate perfoem@ahe Company changed its measure of segmefitt (lwgs) to operating incon
(loss) before depreciation and amortization or "DMB. Prior to 2013, the Company measured segment profit (loss) uspegating incom
The Company revised its financial information arnschbsures for prior periods to reflect the segndistiosures as if the current measur
profit (loss), OIBDA, had been in effect throughaillitperiods presented.

The Company presents OIBDA as the primary measfusegment profit (loss). The Company believes tles@ntation OIBDA is releva
and useful for investors because it allows investor view our segment performance in the same nmaamdhe primary method used
management to evaluate performance and make dexialmout allocating resources. The Company defiB®A as operating income befc
depreciation and amortization, excluding featulra imortization and film impairments.

We do not allocate certain costs included in OIB@Aour reportable segments. These costs are phlyntaniporate overhead expenses
costs which benefit the Company as a whole andherefore not allocated to our reportable segmé&itating in the second quarter of 2(
we began allocating certain staff related expensgscifically stock compensation costs, managerme@ntive compensation and med
benefits in our management reporting and, as swehincluded these costs in the calculation of OIBfA our reportable segments. T
change did not have a material impact on our raptetsegments’ OIBDA. Revenues from transactiohsd®n our operating segments are
material.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

The following tables present summarized finanaiébimation for each of the Company's reportablersags:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Live and Televised Entertainment $ 125,27 $ 117,04C $ 205,20: $ 192,75«

Digital Media

9,15: 7,79: 18,14¢ 14,93¢

Total net revenues $ 152,28 $ 141.64¢ $ 276,28. % 264,71¢

Live and Televised Entertainment $ 38,46: $ 42,60 $ 59,92 $ 68,75(

Digital Media 1,38( 1,894 3,381 3,64¢

Unallocated Corporate (32,206 (26,477) (62,82¢) (56,507

Reconciliation of Total Operating Income to TotallBDA

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Depreciation and amortization 6,08¢ 4,821 11,31¢ 8,73¢

Geographic Information

Net revenues by major geographic region are baged the geographic location of where our contewlisgributed. The information belc
summarizes net revenues to unaffiliated customegebgraphic area:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Europe/Middle East/Africa 23,90« 24,16: 40,15° 42,11¢

Latin America 1,39¢ 3,80¢ 3,43¢ 7,36¢
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

Revenues generated from the United Kingdom, ogekirinternational market, totaled $11,825 and 52®for the three and six mont
ended June 30, 2013 , respectively, and $11,42%28778 for the corresponding periods in 2012peesvely. The Compang’property an
equipment was almost entirely located in the Un&tates at June 30, 2013 and 2012 .

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

As of
June 30, December 31,
2013 2012

Land, buildings and improvements $ 102,89: $ 97,55:
Equipment 101,20¢ 93,31t
Corporate aircraft 20,85¢ 20,85¢
Vehicles 1,474 1,47¢
226,43( 213,19¢

Less accumulated depreciation (121,02 (111,03)
Total $ 105,40: $ 102,16:

Depreciation expense for property and equipmeatadt$5,696 and $10,542 for the three and six nsoatidled June 30, 2018espectively
as compared to $4,708 and $8,514 for the correspgmeriods in 2012, respectively.

5. Feature Film Production Assets

Feature film production assets consisted of theviehg:

As of
June 30, December 31,
2013 2012

Feature film productions:
In release $ 17,51¢ $ 13,23¢
Completed but not released — 7,84¢
In production 5,32( 1,977
In development 764 627
Total $ 23,60: $ 23,691

Approximately 44% of “In release” film productiossets are estimated to be amortized over the reemidhths and approximately 7586
“In release” film production assets are estimatebd amortized over the next three years. We aatieiamortizing 80%f our "In release" filr
production asset within four years as we receivemaes associated with international distributibowr licensed films.

During the six months ended June 30, 2013 , waasel# three feature films via theatrical distribatilo One Lives , The Call and Dead
Man Down , which comprise $3,477 of our “In release” featfilra assets, as of June 30, 2013 . We also redefse feature films 12 Rounds
2: Reloaded andThe Marine 3: Homefront direct to DVD during the six months ended June2®1,3 which comprise $2,72 our "In release
feature film assets as of June 30, 2013 . Thady distributors control the distribution and keting of these films, and as a result,
recognize revenue on a net basis after the fhartly distributor recoups distribution fees andemges and results are reported to us. Resu
typically reported to us in periods subsequenh#initial release of the film.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

Unamortized feature film production assets arewated for impairment each reporting period. Weeevand revise estimates of ultim
revenue and participation costs at each reporteripg to reflect the most current information azble. If estimates for a filrs’ ultimate
revenue are revised and indicate a significantinkeéh a film’s profitability or if events or circumstances charligat indicate we should ass
whether the fair value of a film is less than itemortized film costs, we calculate the film's mstied fair value using a discounted cash f
model. If fair value is less than unamortized ctst,film asset is written down to fair value.

We recorded an impairment charge of $4,696 dutiegtiiree months ended March 31, 2013 related tdeature film,Dead Man Down .
During the three months ended March 31, 2012, werded an impairment charge of $754 related td@ature filmBending the Rules. There
were no impairment charges recorded for the threetihs ended June 30, 2013 and 20TRese impairment charges represent the excehs
recorded net carrying value over the estimatedvlire.

We currently have no theatrical films designated“@empleted but not releasedWe currently have three films designated as
Production" that comprise $5,320 of our featurm fdssets as of June 30, 201®/e also have capitalized certain script develagneests fa
various other film projects designated as “In depaient”. Capitalized script development costs are evaluatedach reporting period i
impairment and to determine if a project is deertwede abandoned. During the three and six monttlededune 30, 2013we did not recol
any expense related to previously capitalized agraknt costs related to abandoned projects. Daineghree and six months endashe 3(
2012 , we expensed $582 and $597 , respectivelyreviously capitalized development costs relatealtandoned projects.

6. Television Production Assets

Television production assets consist primarily piedic television series we have produced forrithistion, either on a potential network
through other distribution platforms. Amounts capited include development costs, production cogtstproduction costs and rela
production or post-production overhead. We have Z8® and $6,331 capitalized as of June 30, 20130mwkmber 31, 2012respectively
related to this type of programming. Costs to poadlive event programming are expensed when thateasdirst broadcast. Unamortiz
television production assets are evaluated for impent each reporting period. If conditions indeat potential impairment, and the estim
future cash flows are not sufficient to recover tilamortized asset, the asset is written downitosédue. In addition, if we determine the
program will not likely air, we will write-off theemaining unamortized asset. During the three anthenths ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
we did not record any impairments related to aigvtsion production assets.

7. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investments

On June 25, 2012, the Company invested $5jA00out Industries, Inc.'s (“Tout") Series B Preéer Stock. In July 2012, the Compi
entered into a twgear strategic partnership whereby WWE would fulitegrate and promote Tout's technology platforto MWWE's T\
broadcasts, digital properties and live events. Wigv&ligible to receive up to 11,25hares of Tout common stock per quarter over faeol
the two-year agreement if certain performance metdare met. During the six months ended June 303 20nve achieved the requir
performance metrics and recorded revenue of $43%&.Company increased its investment in Tout fer2B,500shares it received relatec
the fourth quarter of 2012 and first quarter of 20tespectively. The Company recorded a receiviabléhe shares it expects to receive rel
to the second quarter of 2013.

On May 30, 2013, the Company made an investme#i2 @00in a live event touring business. Our investmemsdaot provide the ability
exercise significant influence over the investee.

Both investments are accounted for under the ceshad. We evaluate our cost method investmentsrfpairment if factors indicate tha
significant decrease in value has occurred. No sudicators were noted during the three and six tiended June 30, 2013ncluded i
Investment Securities in our Consolidated Balankee® as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 20187a869 and $5,220 respectivel
related to these investments.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

Short-term investments measured at fair value stetbiof the following:

June 30, 2013 December 31, 2012
Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Gain (Loss) Value Cost Gain (Loss) Value
Municipal bonds $ 5955 $ 327 % (290) $ 59,58t $ 68517 $ 56€ $ (84 $ 68,99¢
Corporate bonds 19,37: 64 (197) 19,23¢ 17,18: 14£ — 17,32
Total $ 7892: % 391 % 487 $ 78,82t $ 8569¢ $ 711 % (84 $ 86,32¢

We classify the investments listed in the abovéetals available-fosale securities. Such investments consist primafilgorporate bont
and municipal bonds, including prefunded municipal bonds. These investments aredstat fair value as required by the applic
accounting guidance. Unrealized gains and lossesuch securities are reflected, net of tax, asrotbenprehensive income (loss) in

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

Our municipal and corporate bonds are includedhor&erm investments, net on our Consolidated Balanwes. Realized gains ¢
losses on investments are included in earningsaenderived using the specific identification metfior determining the cost of securities s
As of June 30, 2013, contractual maturities o§éhleonds are as follows:

Maturities
1 month40 year:
1 month5 year:

Municipal bonds
Corporate bonds

The following table summarizes the short-term itwesnt activity:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments $ 2,79 $ 3,00¢ $ 2,79 % 3,00¢
Proceeds from maturities and calls of short-term
investments 11,48¢ 11,11¢( 20,27( 16,61(
1 23 1 23

Gross realized gains on sale of short-term investsne

8. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is determined based on the exchange gt would be received to sell an asset or patdansfer a liability in the principal
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipat the measurement date. Fair value
marketbased measurement based on assumptions that "rparkietpants” would use to price the asset oiilligbAccordingly, the framewor
considers markets or observable inputs as the mpeefesource of value followed by assumptions basmedypothetical transactions, in
absence of market inputs. The fair value shoulddleulated based on assumptions that market gaatits would use in pricing the asse
liability, not on assumptions specific to the entitn addition, the fair value of assets and lidie#$ should include consideration of non

performance risk including the Company's own cradk.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

Additionally, the guidance establishes a thiees!l hierarchy that ranks the quality and religpibf information used in developing f
value estimates. The hierarchy gives the highéstifyrto quoted prices in active markets and thwdst priority to unobservable data. In ci
where two or more levels of inputs are used tordates fair value, a financial instrument's levetistermined based on the lowest level i
that is considered significant to the fair valueasi@ement in its entirety. The three levels offéievalue hierarchy are summarized as follows

Level 1- quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities;

Level 2- quoted prices in active markets for similar asaets liabilities and inputs that are observable
the asset or liability; or

Level 3- unobservable inputs, such as discounted cash flodeta or valuations

The following assets are required to be measuréaratalue on a recurring basis and the clasgificawithin the hierarchy were as follov

Fair Value at June 30, 2013 Fair Value at December 31, 2012
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Municipal bonds $ 59,58t % — $ 59,58t $ — $ 6899 $ — $ 6899 $ =
Corporate bonds 19,23¢ — 19,23¢ — 17,327 — 17,32} —
Total $ 78,82t % — $ 7882 $ — $ 86,32¢ $ — $ 86,32¢ $ =

Certain financial instruments are carried at costie Consolidated Balance Sheets, which approrsn@ir value due to their shdgrm
highly liquid nature. The carrying amounts of casid cash equivalents, money market accounts, atcoeceivable and accounts pay:
approximate fair value because of the short-tertaraaf such instruments.

We have classified our investment in municipal @odporate bonds within Level 2 as their valuatiequires quoted prices for simi
instruments in active markets, quoted prices fentatal or similar instruments in markets that ao¢ active and/or modddased valuatic
techniques for which all significant inputs are ebsblein the market or can be corroborated by observataeket data. The municipal ¢
corporate bonds are valued based on mddekn valuations whereby market prices from aetsrof industry standard data providers, sec
master files from large financial institutions asttier third-party sources are used as inputs slgorithm.

The Company also has assets that are required toebsured at fair value on a nacurring basis if it is determined that indicatof
impairment exist. These assets are recorded avdaie only when an impairment is recognized. Dyiime six months ended June 30, 2013
the Company recorded an impairment charge of $4¢606 feature film production asset based on aviite measurements of $98The
Company recorded an impairment charge of $754 dutie six months ended June 30, 20h2a feature film production asset based on i
value measurement of $1,000 . See Nofeeafure Film Production Assets, for further discussion. The Company classifiesthassets as Le
3 within the fair value hierarchy due to signifitamobservable inputs. The Company utilizes a disted cash flows model to determine
fair value of these impaired films where indicatofsmpairment exist. The significant unobservainlputs to this model are the Company’
expected cash flows for the film, including progtthhome video sales, pay and free TV sales anthattenal sales, and a discount ratd 8¥
that we estimate market participants would seekb&aring the risk associated with such assets.Cdrmapany utilizes an independent tl
party specialist that assists us in gathering #wegsary inputs used in our model.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consisthd @dllowing:

As of
June 30, December 31,
2013 2012

Trade related $ 6,941 % 7,36¢
Payroll and related benefits 10,15( 16,09¢
Talent related 6,301 9,80t
Accrued event and television production 3,78 5,122
Accrued home entertainment expenses 1,81¢ 1,98¢
Accrued legal and professional 2,171 1,24:
Accrued purchases of property and equipment angt aitsets 2,55¢ 1,41¢
Accrued film liability 2,89: 572
Accrued other 5,072 5,34t
Total $ 41,69. % 48,95¢

Accrued other includes accruals for our publishamgd licensing business activities and other mianelbus accruals, none of wt
categories individually exceeds 5% of current li&ibs.

10. Senior Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

In 2011, the Company entered into a $200,880ior unsecured revolving credit facility with yndicated group of banks, with JPMor:
Chase acting as administrative agent. In April 2abh8 Company amended and restated the revolviedjtdiacility. Under the terms of t
amended credit facility, (i) the maturity date veagended to September 9, 2016, (ii) changes wedenmathe applicable margin for borrowii
under the facility, and (iii) restrictions on ceantdinancial covenants were amended to providediaater financial flexibility. Applicab
interest rates for the borrowings under the revgveredit facility are based on the Company's cirgonsolidated leverage ratio. As
June 30, 2013, the LIBOR-based rate plus margm2ud2% . As of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 20iE2e were no amounts outstant
under the credit facility. The Company is requitedpay a commitment fee calculated at a rate paurmnof 0.375%on the average da
unused portion of the credit facility. Borrowingsder the credit facility are subject to certairaficial covenants and certain restrictions. /£
June 30, 2013, the Company is in compliance wighprovisions of this credit facility.

11. Concentration of Credit Risk

We continually monitor our position with, and theedit quality of, the financial institutions thateacounterparties to our financ
instruments. Our accounts receivable relate prailyigo a limited number of distributors, includiraur television, pay-peview and hom
video distributors and licensees that produce amesuproducts containing our intellectual trademaM& closely monitor the status
receivables with these customers and maintain alhoes for anticipated losses as deemed appropfiatiune 30, 2013 our largest sing
customer balance was approximately 10% of our grossunts receivable balance.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

12. Income Taxes

The effective tax rate was 38% for the six montidesl June 30, 2013 as compared to 23% for the @ntima ended June 30, 201Ruring
the six months ended June 30, 2012 , we recogi¥izei®7of previously unrecognized tax benefits primaréyated to the settlement of vari
audits, including the State of Connecticut, the ,IR8d other state and local jurisdictions. Includedhe amount recognized was $1,3%8
potential interest and penalties related to unoett positions. The recognition of these amouhtsng the six months endedine 30, 201
resulted in an effective tax rate of 23% .

At June 30, 2013 , we have $2,1@funrecognized tax benefits, which if recognizeduld affect our effective tax rate. The entire amiois
classified as Non-current income tax liabilities. Becember 31, 2012 , we had $2,X#8unrecognized tax benefits. All of this amounts
classified as Non-current income tax liabilities.

We recognize potential accrued interest and p&satélated to uncertain tax positions in incomeeggense. We have $772 and $416
accrued interest and penalties related to uncetdaipositions as of June 30, 2013 and Decembe2@I2, respectively. Essentially the en
amounts are included in Non-current income taxlligds for the periods presented.

Based upon the expiration of statutes of limitagiamd possible settlements in several jurisdictiarsbelieve it is reasonably possible
the total amount of previously unrecognized taxdfiés including interest and penalties may decrdns&658 within 12 months afune 3(
2013.

13. Film and Television Production Incentives

The Company has access to various governmentaigmsgthat are designed to promote film and telemigiroduction within the Unite
States of America and certain international judidns. Incentives earned with respect to experelton qualifying film, television and otl
production activities, including qualifying capitpiojects, are included as an offset to the relateset or as an offset to production expe
when we have reasonable assurance regarding timabdéa amount of the incentives. During the thaed six months ended June 30, 2@h8
2012 , we received $437 and $1,148spectively, of incentives relating to featuhmfproductions which reduced the related assetsin the
three and six months ended June 30, 2013 and 20&2eceived $395 and $1,560espectively, of incentives relating to televisjproductiol
activities that was recorded as an offset to prido@xpenses.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceeding:

We are involved in several litigations and claitnattwe consider to be in the ordinary course oftmusginess. By its nature, the outcom
litigation is not known but the Company does notrently expect its pending litigation to have a enal adverse effect on our financ
condition, results of operations or liquidity. Weynfrom time to time become a party to other lggateedings.

15. Purchase of Corporate Jet

On June 16, 2013, we entered into a purchase agraem buy a 2007 Bombardier Global 5000 jet fqguachase price d27.0 millior
which will replace the Company's current corporaieraft. We entered into this purchase agreeméet an agreement to purchas
comparable aircraft under similar terms was terteiiaWe anticipate the total cost of the aircraffuding certain improvements to be in
range of $31.0 million to $33.0 millionThe Company expects to market the current airéwatale after completion of the purchase ofriba
aircraft and subsequent refurbishment of both tirelmsed aircraft and our existing aircraft.
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

Background

The following analysis outlines all material actie#s contained within each of our reportable segmen

Live and Televised Entertainment

» Revenues consist principally of ticket sales t@ lavents, sales of merchandise at these live evefasision rights fees, integra
sponsorship fees, and fees for viewing our payvie#and video-on-demand programming.

Consumer Products

* Revenues consist principally of sales of WWE pra@ducontent via home entertainment platforms, magagales and royalties
license fees related to various WWE themed prodiiath as video games, toys and apparel.

Digital Media

* Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites, rights fees received for digitaiteat, sale of merchandise on
website through our WWEShop internet storefront salds of various broadband and mobile content.

WWE Studios

* Revenues consist of amounts earned from the disioib of filmed entertainmer

Results of Operations

Beginning in the first quarter of 2013, the Compamgde changes to its operating plan and manageemntting to reflect a change in
measurement used by management to evaluate perfoem@ahe Company changed its measure of segmefitt (lwss) to operating incon
(loss) before depreciation and amortization, orBODA". Prior to 2013, the Company's results of ofiers analysis included a discussiol
profit contribution. The Company revised its dissios of results of operations for prior periodsréflect the segment disclosures as if
current measure of profit (loss), OIBDA, had beeeffect throughout all periods presented.

The Company presents OIBDA as the primary measfimegment profit (loss). The Company believes thesgntation of OIBDA
relevant and useful for investors because it allmwsstors to view our segment performance in #ftireesmanner as the primary method use
management to evaluate performance and make dexiglmout allocating resources. The Company defiB®OA as operating income befc
depreciation and amortization, excluding featulra fimortization and film impairments. OIBDA is amGAAP financial measure and may
different than similarly-titled noiGAAP financial measures used by other companiemaation of OIBDA is that it excludes depreciat
and amortization, which represents the periodiecgéor certain fixed assets and intangible aasests in generating revenues for our busil
OIBDA should not be regarded as an alternativeprating income or net income as an indicator efrating performance, or to the stater
of cash flows as a measure of liquidity, nor shaulske considered in isolation or as a substitotefihancial measures prepared in accord
with GAAP. We believe that operating income is thest directly comparable GAAP financial measuredOiBDA. See Note 3Segment
Information in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statésnéor a reconciliation of OIBDA to operating incenfor the perioc
presented.
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2013 compared to Thkéenths Ended June 30, 2012
(dollars in millions)

Summary

Three Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
2013 2012 (decrease)

Net Revenues

Consumer Products 15.7 16.1 2%

WWE Studios 2.1 0.6 25C %

Live and Televised Entertainment 38.t 42.¢€ (10)%

Digital Media 1.4 1.8 (22)%

Unallocated Corporate Expenses (32.2) (26.9) 22%

OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 10% 17%

Depreciation and amortization expense 6.1 4.8 27%

Investment and other expense, net (0.9 (0.9 (56)%

Provision for income taxes 3.2 6.8 (53%

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment reeerincreased 7%rimarily due to increased revenues in our telewigights and liv
events businesses of $5.6 million and $4.7 milliaespectively. Our Consumer Products segment @qmd a 2%decrease in revent
primarily driven by a $0.7 million decline in ounime entertainment business. Our Digital Media segregperienced an 18%crease i
revenues, primarily driven by higher sales of atisielg across various digital platforms. Our WWHE@bs segment experienced a $1.5 mi
increase in revenues primarily due to two featilne feleases in the current quarter.
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Live and Televised Entertainment

The following tables provide performance resultd key drivers for our Live and Televised Entertagmhsegment:

Three Months Ended

Revenues Live and Televised Entertainment June 30, June 30, increase
(dollars in millions except where noted) 2013 2012 (decrease)

North America $ 301 $ 22.2 35%

|
S

Total live event attendance 552,00( 553,00(

Average North American attendance 6,30( 6,40( (2)%

Number of international events 22 30 2N%

Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 68.1€ $ 63.47 7%

Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 11.9¢ $ 11.8¢ 1%

Number of pay-per-view events 3 4 (25%

Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 23.9: $ 21.41 12%

I
S

Domestic retail price excludingfrestleMania (dollars) $ 449t 3 44 .9¢

Domestic $ 23.¢ $ 19.C

N
w
X

Other $ 32 % 3.1

w
=S

Ratings

o
o
>

Average weekly household ratings famnackDown 2.1 2.C

Average weekly household ratingsWWE Saturday Morning Sam 0.6 N/A
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Three Months Ended

OIBDA -Live and Televised Entertainment June 30, June 30, increase
(dollars in millions) 2013 2012 (decrease)
Live events $ 164 $ 12.¢ 28%
Venue merchandise 2.7 1.¢ 42 %
Pay-per-view 9.¢ 19.5 (50)%
Television rights fees 11.¢ 9.7 23%
Other (2.9 (1.9 77 %
Total $ 385 % 42.¢€ (10)%
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 31% 3€%

Live events revenues increased by $4.7 milliotthe current year quarter as compared to the gear quarter. Revenues from our Ni
America live events business increased $ 7.8 miin35% primarily due to the strong performancewf annualrestieMania event andhe
scheduling of eight additional domestic eventshia turrent year quarter. In addition, we schedualédf our Fan Axxess events, held |
conjunction withWrestleMania XXIX, during the current year quarter while the majodfyour Fan Axxess events forWrestleMania XXVI1|
were scheduled during our first quarter of 200&estleMania XXIX experienced a 39% increase in average ticket pdoefributing $3.
million in incremental ticket revenue aif@n Axxess added $2.3 million in additional revenue in therent year quarter as compared to
prior year quarter. Average ticket prices for owrtd America events increased by 13% to $64vB8e the average attendance fell slightly
2% . Our international live events business revatemeased $ 3.1 millioprimarily due to eight fewer events held in thereat year quarte
This was partially offset by a 7% increase in intgional ticket prices to $68.16 and an increas&average attendance of @&approximatel
6,600in the current year quarter. The increases in aeeti@ket price and average attendance were dakaioges in territory mix as the pi
year quarter included weak attendance at our ewemtexico and our first live event in Brazil, a rkat with lon¢-term strategic importance
WWE. The live events OIBDA as a percentage of reesrwas 41% in the current year quarter compar88%oin the prior year quarter.

Venue merchandise revenues increased by $1.5 millidhe current year quarter as compared to the gear quarter. This increase
primarily due to the timing of ouFan Axxess events as described above. Total paid attendanoardtiorth America events increased !
while domestic per capita merchandise sales aetleosnts remained relatively unchanged at $1ihQ8e current year quarter. The ve
merchandise OIBDA as a percentage of revenuesasetkto 39% from 35% in the prior year quarter.

Pay-per-view revenues decreased by $ 3.7 milliothe current year quarter as compared to the ggar quarter primarily attributable
one fewer pay-peview event held in the current quarter, which aeted for $3.2 million of the revenue decline. Raverfrom the thre
events in the quarter declined 3% versus the year quarter as a combined 18Rcline in buys was nearly offset by a 12% incraasthe
average revenue per buy. The shortfall in revenoim these events, however, were offset by an iser@abuys for prior period events. -
rise in revenue per buy was due to an approxim#tar@rease in the domestic retail price chargedsfewing WrestieMania and to a hight
proportion of buys to view our events in high dafom, which generally garners a higher retail pri¢he pay-peview OIBDA as a percenta
of revenues decreased to 26% from 4i@%he prior year quarter primarily due to a redéuetin revenues and a $2.6 million increase innt
and advertising related expenses.

Television rights fees revenues increased by $5lGomin the current year quarter as compared to the gear quarter. Domestical
television rights fees increased by $ 4.5 milligrimarily due to the production and licensingnefv programs. During July 2012, we bege
produce and license an additional houR&#V to the USA Network. In addition, during the thirdagter of 2012, we began licensing two |
original series, th&®\WE Main Event which is carried on the ION Television Network aniVE Saturday Morning Samwhich is carried on tt
CW Network. The television rights fees OIBDA asaaqentage of revenues increased to 31% from 3Q%eiprior year quarter.
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Consumer Products
The following tables provide performance resultd key drivers for our Consumer Products segmerilaf@dan millions):

Three Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase

RevenuesConsumer Products 2013 2012 (decrease)
Licensing $ 6.7 $ 6.€ 2%
Home entertainment $ 71 % 7.8 (9%

Gross units shipped 965,80( 837,20( 15 %
Magazine publishing $ 12 % 1.2 — %

Net units sold 465,00( 468,70( (D%
Other $ 06 $ 0.4 5C %
Total $ 157 $ 16.1 (2)%

Three Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
OIBDA -Consumer Products 2013 2012 (decrease)
Licensing $ 42 % 3.6 1C%
Home entertainment 3.1 3.4 (9)%
Magazine publishing 0.1 — 10C %
Other 0.1 0.1 — %
Total $ 7€ $ 7.4 3%
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 48% 4€%

Licensing revenues increased by $ 0.1 milliothe current year quarter as compared to the pear quarter. Royalties from the sale of
products increased approximately 15%, or $0.5 amillied by higher sales of action figures in th& Wvith strong domestic retail support. 1
increase was offset by a $0.7 million reductiorvitleo game revenue. Partially due to the transitibour video game licensee to Takexo
Interactive ("TakeFwo"), shipments of our franchise video game, WV8E'dleclined 65% in the current year quarter to 00,0nits a
compared to the corresponding game in the prior gearter. The licensing OIBDA as a percentageswénues was 64 the current yei
quarter compared to 59% in the prior year quantertd lower costs associated with talent particpet

Home entertainment revenues decreased by $ 0.iomdl 9%in the current year quarter as compared to the year quarter. The 9
decline reflected a reduction in estimated #®ibugh rates and lower revenue from our intermatidicensing activities. Domestic ho
entertainment revenue fell $0.4 million, or 6% aak5% increase in shipments to nearly 1.0 millioits was more than offset by a 13% de
in the average price per unit to $10.59 and airisestimated returns. The change in projected mstalerived from an increase in cat:
shipments over the last twelve months, which hisatly have been characterized by lower estimatditisrough rates. Revenue from
international licensing activities declined by appmately $0.3 million due to the transition to awnlicensee in the EMEA region. Ho
entertainment OIBDA as a percentage of revenuesiisin both the current prior year quarters.

Magazine publishing revenues remained flat at $dilBon both in the current and prior year quarters. Netsusold decreased slightly
1% . We published three issuesWYWE Magazine and two issues dMWVE Kids magazine both in the current year and prior yeartgus
Publishing OIBDA as a percentage of revenues ise@&o 8% from 0% in the prior year quarter.
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Digital Media

The following tables provide performance resultsdor Digital Media segment (dollars in millionsoept average revenues per order):

RevenuesDigital Media
WWE.com
WWEShop
Total
Average WWEShop revenues per order (dollars)

OIBDA -Digital Media
WWE.com
WWEShop
Total
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues

Three Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
$ 6.1 $ 4.¢ 27 %
3.1 3.C 3%
$ 9.2 $ 7.8 18 %
$ 479z $ 48.7( (2%
Three Months Ended
June 30, June 30, increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
$ 1¢c 3 M5 (33)%
0.4 0.2 33%
$ 14 3 1.8 (22)%
15% 23%

WWE.com revenues increased by $ 1.3 millionthe current year quarter as compared to ther g@ar quarter, due to higher sale:
advertising across various digital platforms. WWiHCOIBDA as a percentage of revenues decrease@%uarithe current year quarter fre

31% in the prior year quarter due to a $1.3 milliocrease in staffing related expenses due toitivgghof additional personnel.

WWEShop revenues remained relatively flat at $3illian in the current year quarter as compared to the gaar quarter. The number
orders was unchanged at 63,000 and the averageueyer order decreased slightly by 2% to $47@2VEShop OIBDA as a percentage
revenues increased to 13% in the current year euiaom 10% in the prior year quarter due to logleipping related expenses.
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WWE Studios

The following table provides detailed informatiar bur WWE Studios' segment (in millions):

Feature
Film
Production
Assets-net as
of For the Three Months Ended June 30,
June 30, Inception to-date Revenue OIBDA
Release Production
Title Date Costs* 2013 Revenue OIBDA 2013 2012 2013 2012

12 Rounds 2:
Reloaded June 2013 $ 1.2 $ 1.2 % — 3 — % — $NA $ — $N/A
The Call Mar 2013 1.C 1.C 0.1 0.1 — N/A — N/A
The Marine 3:
Homefront Mar 2013 1.4 1.4 — — — N/A — N/A

N
o
=
N

I
I
o
(9]
o
N
o
[y

N/A

o
iy

NoHoldsBarred  July 2012 N/A

(o]
(8)]
[EEY
[¢6]
N
~lI

(8.1) 0.2 0.1) —

Prior Releases 106.¢ 10.C 96.¢ (18.9) 1.4 0.4 0.7 0.1

Completed but not released

In development . . . (0.6)

Selling, General &
Administrative Expenses

(1.0 (0.5)

*  Production costs are presented net of thecat®d benefit of production incentives.

During the current year quarter, we released oa&ufe film via theatrical distributiorlo One Lives . We also releaset? Rounds 2:
Reloaded direct to DVD during the current year quarter. @hparty distributors control the distribution and keting of these two feature filr
and, as a result, we recognize revenue on a nét hfer the thirdparty distributor recoups distribution fees and enges and results .
reported to us. Results are typically reportedstinuperiods subsequent to the initial releasdese films.

WWE Studios revenues increased $1.5 milliorthe current year quarter as compared to the ggar quarter. The increase in revent
attributable to the performance of our new filmeese No One Lives, and the timing of results generated by our ovegrattfolio of movies
including the impact ofThe Marine and The Marine 2 , which were released in prior periods. WWE StudidBDA increased $0.7 milliom
the current year quarter as compared to the pear guarter, primarily due to the profitability @fir older film releases which had a posi
impact on the current year quarter.

At June 30, 2013 , the Company had $23.6 milljlpet of accumulated amortization and impairment@és) of feature film producti
assets capitalized on its Consolidated BalancetSWaereview and revise estimates of ultimate rereeand
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participation costs at the end of each reportimgppeto reflect the most current information avhi&a If estimates for a filng ultimate revent
are revised and indicate a significant decline fitnal s profitability or if events or circumstances chanlgat indicate we should assess wht
the fair value of a film is less than its unamagtiZilm costs, we calculate the film's estimatddalue using a discounted cash flows modt
fair value is less than unamortized cost, the fisset is written down to fair value.

Unallocated Corporate Expenses

The following table presents the amounts and pérm®mge of certain significant unallocated corpoexpenses (dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase

2013 2012 (decrease)
Staff related $ 137 % 11.€ 18%
Management incentive compensation 1.¢ 1.€ 1%
Legal, accounting and other professional 5.1 4.4 1€%
Travel and entertainment expense 1.2 1.C 3%
Advertising, marketing and promotion 2.C 1.C 100(%
Corporate insurance 1.C 1.C —%
Bad debt expense 0.1 0.1 —%
All other 7.1 5.7 25%
Total unallocated corporate expenses $ 322 % 26.£ 22%
Unallocated corporate expenses as a percentage muenues 21% 1S%

Unallocated corporate expenses increased by $3lidmmor 22%in the current year quarter compared to the prearyquarter. This w
primarily due to increases in compensation and fitsrexpenses of $2.4 million. In addition, the Guamy incurred higher talent developrr
costs of $1.0 million, marketing expenses of $lillion, and higher professional fees of $0.7 mifljgprimarily to support our content rela
initiatives, including the potential launch of a ViBMetwork.

Depreciation and Amortization
(dollars in millions)

Three Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Depreciation and amortization $ 6.1 $ 4.8 27%

Depreciation and amortization expense increasefiloy million , or 27%, in the current year quarter compared to the préar quarte
Depreciation expense for the current year quaréieats higher property and equipment balancestduecreased capital expenditure:
support our emerging content and distribution é¢$fancluding a potential network.

Investment Income, Interest and Other Expense, Net
(dollars in millions)

Three Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Investment income, interest and other expense, net $ 0.9 $ (0.9 (56€)%
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Investment income, interest and other expenseyirkted an expense of $0.4 million compared to $8iion in the prior year quarte
primarily reflecting decreases in expenses asstiaith other nonincome taxes and decreased realized foreign exehlasges in the curre

year quarter as compared to the prior year qu

Income Taxes
(dollars in millions)

Provision for income taxes
Effective tax rate

Three Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
32 % 6.8 (53)%
38% 36%

The current year period effective tax rate was tieglg impacted due to decreased section 199 demhsctdue to lower qualifie

productions activities income.
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Results of Operations

Six Months EndecJune 30, 2013 compared to Six Months Ended June 3012
(dollarsin millions)

Summary

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
2013 2012 (decrease)

Net Revenues

Consumer Products 48.¢ 51.€ (5)%

WWE Studios 4.C 5.4 (26)%

Live and Televised Entertainment 59.¢ 68.7 (13%

Digital Media 34 3.7 (8)%

Unallocated Corporate Expenses (62.€) (56.5) 11%

OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 9% 17%

Depreciation and amortization expense 112 8.8 28%

Investment and other expense, net 1.9 (0.9 32E%

Provision for income taxes 5.C 7.6 (BN%

The comparability of our results for the catrgear period was impacted by a $ilion impairment charge related to our featurdenf
Dead Man Down, and an approximate $3.4 million positive impactnirthe transition of our video game to a new license the prior yee
period, our results were impacted by a $0.8 millimpairment charge related to our feature fiBending the Rules, andthe recognition of

$3.7 million benefit due to previously unrecognizax benefits.

Our Live and Televised Entertainment segment reegnncreased 6% primarily due to a $10.6 millinarease in our television rigl
business. Our Consumer Products segment experien&8d decrease in revenues primarily driven by @ $Zillion decline in our homr
entertainment business. Our Digital Media segmeiedenced a 22%ncrease in revenues, primarily driven by highelesaof online
advertising and incremental fees from a new agreeraptered into with Hulu. Our WWE Studios segmexyperienced a 26%ecline i

revenues primarily due to the performance of oiorgiim releases.
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Live and Televised Entertainment

The following tables present the performance resaiid key drivers for our Live and Televised Emtiernent segment:

Six Months Ended

Revenues Live and Televised Entertainment __(dollars June 30, June 30, increase
in millions except where noted) 2013 2012 (decrease)

North America $ 501 $ 41.2 22%

Total live event attendance 1,048,601 1,004,201 4%

Average North American attendance 6,30( 6,30( — %

Number of international events 25 36 (BD)%

Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 68.4C $ 69.5¢ 2%

Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 11.0¢ $ 10.7¢ 2%

Number of pay-per-view events 5 6 17%

Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 225¢ % 20.7¢ 9%

Domestic retail price excludingfrestleMania ( dollars) $ 4498 % 44.9¢ —

Domestic $ 48.C $ 39.4 22%

Other $ 44 $ 5.E

Ratings

Average weekly household ratings $omackDown 2.2 2.1 5%

Average weekly household ratingsWWE Saturday Morning Sam 0.7 N/A
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Six Months Ended

OIBDA -Live and Televised Entertainment June 30, June 30, increase
(dollars in millions) 2013 2012 (decrease)
Live events $ 20 % 17.2 21%
Venue merchandise 4.t 3.8 18%
Pay-per-view 16.£ 27.2 (40)%
Television rights fees 24.¢€ 22.t 9%
Other (6.5) (2.9 185 %
Total $ 59¢ % 68.7 (19)%
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 2% 36%

Live events revenues increased by $3.5 milliothe current year period as compared to the prar period. Revenues from our Nt
America live events business increased $8.9 millio2%as we held 16 more events in the current perioddttition, we experienced an
increase in average ticket prices in the curreat yeriod as compared to the prior year period. @unualWrestleMania event experiencec
39% increase in average ticket prices and a 2%aser in attendance contributing $3.6 million irrémeental ticket revenue in the current
period as compared to the prior year period. Otarirational live events business decreased $5limprimarily due to 11 fewer events h
in the current year period which was partially effby a 7%increase in average attendance. The increase mage/attendance was due
strong attendance at the events held during ouofd&an tour in the current year period relative ttermlance at the events held during
European and Latin America tours in the prior peridhe live events OIBDA as a percentage of revemuees 34%n the current year peri
compared to 30% in the prior year period.

Venue merchandise revenues increased by $1.5 mitlithe current year period as compared to the prar period. Increased sale:
merchandise at our domestic events were partifiibgoby lower international licensing revenuestal @aid attendance at our domestic ev
increased 13% while per capita merchandise spetfibaé events increased 2% to $11ir0dhe current year period. The venue merchai
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues increased tofB&%%36% in the prior year period.

Pay-per-view revenues decreased by $2.1 milliathéncurrent year period as compared to the priar period, as we held one fewer pay
per-view event in the current year period. Thisrdase was offset by a 9tcrease in average revenue per buy from the pdar period du
in part, to an increase in the domestic retailgpdbarged for viewing\VrestieMania and higher retail prices charged for viewing ouers ir
high definition. The pay-per-view OIBDA as a pertzge of revenues decreased to 31% from §0%e prior year period due primarily to
additional $4.6 million in talent related expenses.

Television rights fees revenues increased by $fdligon in the current year period as compared to the pmar period. Domestical
television rights fees increased by $8.6 milligrimarily due to the production and licensingnefv programs. During third quarter of 2012,
began to produce and license an additional hotRAYY to the USA Network. In addition, during the thirdagter of 2012, we began licens
two original seriesyWWE Main Event which is carried on the ION Television Network amivVE Saturday Morning Sam which is carried on tt
CW Network. The television rights fees OIBDA asaqentage of revenues decreased to 33% fromiB3&e prior year period due to hig
direct costs for staff related expenses and inecepsoduction expenses.
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Consumer Products

The following tables present the performanaeiits and key drivers for our Consumer Productsnesyg (dollars in millions):

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
RevenuesConsumer Products 2013 2012 (decrease)
Licensing $ 30.7 $ 30.€ — %
Home entertainment $ 141 % 17.C 17%
Gross units shipped 2,182,001 1,667,20! 31%
Magazine publishing $ 29 % 2.7 7%
Net units sold 982,70( 958,40( 3%
Other $ 12 % 11 9%
Total $ 48 $ 51.€ (5)%
Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30, increase
OIBDA -Consumer Products 2013 2012 (decrease)
Licensing $ 244 % 21.¢ 12%
Home entertainment 6.3 8.€ (28)%
Magazine publishing 0.2 — 10C %
Other 0.2 0.2 — %
Total $ 311 % 30.¢ 1%
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 64% 60%

Licensing revenues decreased by $0.1 milifothe current year period as compared to the préar period. The current year pel
reflected an estimated $2.0 million positive impassociated with the bankruptcy of our former vidame licensee, THQ, and the transitic
a new video game licensee, Takeo Interactive. This positive impact was offsetlbwer revenue from video game, and other prodwdth
the aggregate decline from our international marldetring the current period as compared to ther ps@r period. As a result of TH(
bankruptcy, we did not collect or recognize a portof anticipated royalties due in the six monthdesl 2013. Therefore, despite the pos
impact of the transition of our video game licemserevenue and income in the first quarter, WWHiired an estimated economic los:
approximately $3.0 million stemming from foregorideo game receipts. Excluding the impact of thewsidame transition, sales of our vi
game declined approximately 16% with a correspandéduction in average retail prices from the pyiear period. The licensing OIBDA a
percentage of revenues was 79% in the currentperéyd compared to 71% in the prior year period.

Home entertainment revenues decreased by $2.9mibi 17%in the current year period as compared to the péar period. Reven
from our international licensing activities declihby approximately $1.6 million due to the recogmitof greater minimum guarantees in
prior year period. Domestic home entertainment maeefell approximately $1.3 million, or 9%, as @8increase in shipments 202 million
units was more than offset by lower sell-througtesaand an 8% decline in the average price pertarf®9.99. OIBDA decreased 38%
primarily due to the decline in revenues while aafstevenues only declined slightly by $0.4 millisom the prior year period. This was du
increased shipments offset by lower material cddtsne entertainment OIBDA as a percentage of resemecreased to 45 the currer
year period compared 52% in the prior year period.

Magazine publishing revenues increased by $0.2iamiih the current year period as compared to the prear period due to higk
newsstand sales. Net units sold increased by 3% pulished six issues WWE Magazine, five issues ofMVE Kids

29




Table of Contents

magazine and one special issue both in the cuyeartand prior year periods. OIBDA increased shighy $0.2 millionwhile cost of revenur
remained relatively flat. Publishing OIBDA as a gentage of revenues increased to 7% from 0% iptioe year period.

Digital Media

The following tables present the performaresailts for our Digital Media segment (dollars iflimns except where noted):

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
RevenuesDigital Media 2013 2012 (decrease)
WWE.com $ 11 $ 8.7 33%
WWEShop 6.€ 6.2 6 %
Total $ 182 $ 14.¢ 22 %
Average WWEShop revenues per order (dollars) $ 4798 $ 48.1¢ — %

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
OIBDA -Digital Media 2013 2012 (decrease)
WWE.com $ 22 % 2.€ (15)%
WWEShop 1.2 1.1 9%
Total $ 34 3 SN (8)%
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 19% 25%

WWE.com revenues increased by $ 2.9 millionthe current year period as compared to the prear period, due to higher sales
advertising across various digital platforms, adl a® the addition of rights fees associated whid licensing of WWE programs to Hulu. 1
related programming agreement with Hulu commennesieptember 2012. WWE.com OIBDA as a percentageveiues decreased to 19%6
the current year period from 30% in the prior yeariod due to hiring of new personnel to suppastéased programming.

WWEShop revenues increased by $0.4 million in tiveent year period compared to the prior year perilsiven by a 6%ncrease in tr
number of orders to 136,100 . Average revenue paressentially remained flat at $47.98/WEShop OIBDA as a percentage of revel
increased to 18% in the current year period frofb 17 the prior year period.
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WWE Studios

The following table presents the detailed informatior our WWE Studios segment (dollars in milligns

Feature
Film
Production

Assets-net as
of For the Six Months Ended June 30,

Release Production June 30, Inception to-date Revenue OIBDA
Title Date Costs* 2013 Revenue  OIBDA 2013 2012 2013 2012

N
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w

N
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o
~lI
o
~lI

N/A N/A

No One Lives May 2013
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Dead Man Down Mar 2013

@.7) N/A (4.7 N/A
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Barricade Sept 2012 11 (3.6 0.2 N/A (0.7) N/A
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Bending The Rules Mar 2012 1.C 4.7 0.1 (1.7
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In production

Sub-total $ 1340 $ 23€ $ 100: $ (351 $ 4C $ 54 (3.9 (1.5)

Total $ B9 $ (23

*

Production costs are presented net of theca®d benefit of production incentives.

During the current year period, we releasedeteature films via theatrical distributiddo One Lives , Dead Man Down and The Call anc
two films, 12 Rounds 2: Reloaded and The Marine 3: Homefront direct to DVD. Thirdparty distributors control the distribution and keting
of these films and, as a result, we recognize negem a net basis after the thpdrty distributor recoups distribution fees andenges ar
results are reported to us. Results are typicalbhprted to us in periods subsequent to the intialse of these films.

WWE Studios revenues decreased $1.4 milliothe current year period as compared to the py@ar period. The decrease in reveni
primarily attributable to the performance of ouiopfilm releases. In the prior year period, we laastrong performance from our licensed 1
12 Rounds, which was released in 2009. In addition, the decl&flected the timing of recognizing revenue froar movie portfolio. Thel
were five feature films released in the currentrygariod compared to one films released in therpréar period. Although there were f
feature films released in the current year perredenues for these films will be recognized on & bwesis as participation statements
received rather than upon release as was the dédseuwv self-distributed movieBending the Rules, in the prior year quarter. WWE Stud
OIBDA decreased $3.1 milliom the current year period as compared to the year period, primarily as a result of recordingimpairmen
charge of $4.7 million in the current year period
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compared to $0.8 million in the prior year peritmthe current year period, the Company recordetirgrairment forDead Man Down due tc
lower than expected performance.

At June 30, 2013 , the Company had $23.6 milljoaet of accumulated amortization and impairmentrgbs) of feature film producti
assets capitalized on its Consolidated BalancetSiWée review and revise estimates of ultimate reeeand participation costs at the en
each reporting period to reflect the most currefibrimation available. If estimates for a filsnultimate revenue are revised and indic:
significant decline in a films profitability or if events or circumstances charbat indicate we should assess whether the dhiievof a film i
less than its unamortized film costs, we calcuthtefilm's estimated fair value using a discountadh flows model. If fair value is less tl
unamortized cost, the film asset is written dowfaiovalue.

Unallocated Corporate Expenses

The following table presents the amounts and pémtemnge of certain significant unallocated corpoexpenses (dollars in millions):

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase

2013 2012 (decrease)
Staff related $ 27z $ 24.2 12 %
Management incentive compensation 4.8 4.4 9 %
Legal, accounting and other professional 10.1 8.4 20%
Travel and entertainment expense 2.4 2.2 9 %
Advertising, marketing and promotion 3.C 2.C 50 %
Corporate insurance 1.6 2.C (5)%
Bad debt (recovery) expense (0.2 0.€ (122)%
All other 13.¢ 12.¢ 10%
Total unallocated corporate expenses $ 62.6 $ 56.5 11%
Unallocated corporate as a percentage of net regenu 23% 21%

Unallocated corporate expenses increased 8/ fflion or 11%in the current year period compared to the pricrygeriod. This we
primarily due to increases in compensation and fitsrexpenses of $3.4 million. In addition, the Guamy incurred higher professional fee
$1.7 million, marketing expenses of $1.0 milliordaalent development costs primarily to support @amtent related initiatives, including -
potential launch of a WWE network. This increase wtset by a $1.1 million reduction in bad delbpenxse.

Depreciation and Amortization
(dollars in millions)

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Depreciation and amortization $ 112 $ 8.8 28%

Depreciation and amortization expense incikdne$2.5 million , or 28% in the current year period compared to the pyemsir perioc
Depreciation expense for the current year perifldats higher property and equipment balances duecreased capital expenditures ovel
past two years to support our emerging contentdéstdbution efforts, including a potential network
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Investment Income, Interest and Other Expense, Net
(dollars in millions)

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Investment income, interest and other expense, net $ @n $ (0.9 325%

Investment income, interest and other expemseyielded an expense of $1.7 million compare&Qat millionin the prior year perio
reflecting incremental expenses associated witlerottonincome taxes, realized foreign exchange lossestlamdlisposal of property a
equipment in the current year period as comparéaerior year period.

Income Taxes
(dollars in millions)

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30, increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Provision for income taxes $ 5 % 7.€ (3%
Effective tax rate 38% 23%

The current year period effective tax rate wagatively impacted by decreased section 199 diesisctiue to lower qualified producti
activities. The prior year period effective taxeratas positively impacted by the recognition of7$Billion of previously unrecognized t
benefits, primarily related to the settlement afimas audits, including the State of Connectidu, RS, and other state and local jurisdictions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We had cash and short-term investments of $122IBbmand $152.4 million as of June 30, 20dr&d December 31, 2012, respectively,
no outstanding debt. Our short-term investmentsisbprimarily of corporate bonds and municipal d®nincluding preefunded municipi
bonds.

We believe that cash provided from operations,tiexjscash and investment balances and funds alaifedm our revolving credit facilil
are sufficient to meet our operating requiremerty ¢he next 12 months. This includes cash requergmfor dividend payments, feature 1
production requirements, projected capital expeme#t, and additional operational costs associatddour increased content production
distribution initiatives including a potential nedvk.

On June 16, 2013, we entered into a purchase agraembuy a 2007 Bombardier Global 5000 jet whighreplace the Company's curr
corporate aircraft. The anticipated purchase piiceluding certain improvements, is expected toirbéhe range of $31.0 million to $3:
million. The Company anticipates closing on thechaise, subject to our acceptance of an inspedtiokgust 2013. The Company expect
market the current aircraft for sale after the methment of the purchased aircraft and our cura@ataft. The Company anticipates funding
purchase of this aircraft and related refurbishmerg asset backed financing as allowed underexoiving credit facility.

For the remainder of 2013, we anticipate spenditavéen $40.0 million and $50.0 million on the pasbs of property and equipment
other assets, including the aforementioned corpaacraft.
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Borrowing Capacity

In April 2013, we amended and restated our exis$200.0 million revolving credit facility with a agicated group of banks, w
JPMorgan Chase, as administrative agent. Undetethgs of the amended agreement, (i) the maturityuoforiginal $200.0 million revolvir
credit facility was extended to September 9, 2@iischanges were made to the applicable margirbfarowings under the facility, and (
restrictions on certain financial covenants wereaged to provide for greater financial flexibiliywe have no outstanding borrowings ur
the credit facility for the periods presented amé eurrently in compliance with the provisions betrevolving credit facility and are 1
restricted from paying dividends to our stockhogder

While we do not have specific plans to borrow unaler credit facility in the near term, we have ammeed initiatives for which we m
borrow in the future, including the potential expim and update of our production facilities. Weynadéso pursue strategic investments
acquisitions in support of our growth initiative. &ddition to the revolving credit facility, the @pany continually evaluates financing opti
that are cost effective and that will add to thempany's financial flexibility.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows generated from operating activities $&9® million for the six months ended June 30, 26d8\pared to $44.7 milliofor the
corresponding period in the prior year. This $3&Blion decrease was driven by an approximate $Ifillion reduction in operatir
performance, an $11.0 million increase in the ahpagout of management incentive compensation d&ah@es in working capital associe
with our international live events and pay-per-vievents compared to the prior year period.

In the current year period, we spent $5.5 millionfeature film production activities, compared @@ million in the prior year period.
the current year period, we received $0.4 milliariricentives related to feature film productions.the prior year period, we received §
million in incentives related to feature film pradion. We anticipate spending between $10.0 milloovd $15.0 million on feature fil
production activities during the remainder of therent year.

We did not receive any ndiim related incentives in the current or prior yg&riods. We anticipate receiving approximately0$8illion tc
$10.0 million in non-film related incentives, indimg credits associated with qualifying capitaljpots for the remainder of the year.

During the current year period, the Company spef0$millionto produce additional content for television, coneglato $5.0 million in th
prior year period. We anticipate spending approxaiya$3.0 million to $4.0 million to produce additial content during the remainder of
current year and incurring $3.0 million to $7.0lroih in operating expenses to support these inigatduring the remainder of the current yeatr

Our accounts receivable represent a significantigporof our current assets and relate principadlyat limited number of custome
distributors and licensees that produce consunayats containing our trademarks. At June 30, 2048 had one customer who represe
10% of our gross accounts receivable balance. Chamgti®ifinancial condition or operations of our dmitors, customers or licensees 1
result in increased delayed payments or papments which would adversely impact our cash dlénom operating activities and/or our res
of operations.

In February 2013, the Company and THQ reached seeatent to terminate its video game license, whipleement was approved by
U.S. Bankruptcy Court on February 19, 2013. In emtion with this termination, the Company waivedrights to the preetition amounts dt
under its license agreement with THQ, and THQ afjtedransfer certain intellectual property rigtt3VWE.

In connection with the THQ license termination, empany recognized $8.0 million of revenue dutimg first quarter of 2013 related
the unrecognized portion of an advance receivedwttie Company entered into the license agreemeht™MAQ in 2009. As a result of TH(
bankruptcy, we did not collect or recognize a mortof anticipated royalties estimated between #illon and $5.0 million; this loss did r
have a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition or results of operations.

Upon termination of the agreement with THQ, the @any entered into a five-year agreement with Take-to be the Company's vic

game licensee. Takewo assumed distribution of our existing catalog/iofeo games and will develop and publish fututledj including th
release of the Company's annual franchise game \RKMIE.
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Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities decrease@32 million to $9.6 million in the first half &2013compared to the prior year peri
The cash used in both periods reflects the impaandnvestment in capital assets to support ofartsfto create and distribute new cont
including through a potential network and a deaeaspending related to strategic investments.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash flows used in financing activities were $18illion and $18.0 million for the six months endé&ane 30, 201&nd June 30, 201
respectively. Dividends paid in the periods remdifiat as the quarterly dividend rate remained tamsat $0.12 per share.

Contractual Obligations

There have been no significant changes to our actual obligations that were previously disclosediur Report on Form 1K-for our
fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

There have been no significant changes to our atcmupolicies that were previously disclosed i &eport on Form 16 for our fisca
year ended December 31, 2012 or in the methodalegd in formulating these significant judgments astimates that affect the applicatiol
these policies.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

There are no accounting standards or interpretativat have been issued, but which we have nadatted, that we believe will have a
material impact on our financial statements.

Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the “Safe Hart Provisions of the Private Securities LitigatioReform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B9provides a “safe harbor” for certain statemehtt tire forwardeoking and are n
based on historical facts. When used in this Fodr@Q1the words “may,” “will,” “could,” “anticipaté,“plan,” “continue,” “project,” “intend”,
“estimate”, “believe”, “expect” and similar exprémss are intended to identify forward-looking statmts, although not all forwaldeking
statements contain such words. These statemeats telour future plans, objectives, expectationsiatentions and are not historical facts
accordingly involve known and unknown risks andentainties and other factors that may cause theabotsults or the performance by u
be materially different from future results or merhance expressed or implied by such forwlaaking statements. The following factc
among others, could cause actual results to diffgterially from those contained in forward-lookisgitements made in this Form QO; in
press releases and in oral statements made byuthworized officers: (i) risks relating to increagiour content production for distribution
various platforms including the potential creataira WWE network; (ii) our failure to maintain arrew key agreements could adversely &
our ability to distribute our television and paysew programming; (iii) our failure to continue develop creative and entertaining progr
and events would likely lead to a decline in th@udarity of our brand of entertainment; (iv) ouildae to retain or continue to recruit k
performers could lead to a decline in the appealuofstorylines and the popularity of our brancpfertainment; (v) the unexpected loss o
services of Vincent K. McMahon could adversely efffeur ability to create popular characters anditive storylines or otherwise advers
affect our operations; (vi) decline in general emoic conditions and disruption in financial marketsild adversely affect our business; |
our accounts receivable represent a significantiggorof our current assets and relate principatlyat limited number of distributors &
licensees, increasing our exposure to bad debtpatedtially impacting our results of operationsiiX a decline in the popularity of our bra
of sports entertainment, including as a resultlanges in the social and political climate, coudgeasely affect our business; (ix) change
the regulatory atmosphere and related private séuitiatives could adversely affect our busine§g; the markets in which we operate
highly competitive, rapidly changing and increagyifgagmented, and we may not be able to compdéstafely, especially against competit
with greater financial resources or marketplacesgmee; (xi) we face uncertainties associated witarnational markets; (xii) we may
prohibited from promoting and conducting our liweerts if we do not comply with applicable regulagp (xiii) because we
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depend upon our intellectual property rights, aability to protect those rights, or our infringemef others’intellectual property rights, cot
adversely affect our business; (xiv) we could insubstantial liabilities if litigation is resolvashfavorably; (xv) we could incur substan
liability in the event of accidents or injuries acdng during our physically demanding events; odr live events expose us to risks relatir
large public events as well as travel to and frarchsevents; (xvii) we continue to face risks inméri@ our feature film business; (xviii) \
could face a variety of risks if we expand into neiwcomplementary businesses and/or make strait@eggstments; (xix) risks related to «
computer systems and online operations; (xx) thnokig beneficial ownership of a substantial majodf our Class B common stock, 1
controlling stockholder, Vincent K. McMahon, careesise control over our affairs, and his interesés/ conflict with the holders of our Cl:
A common stock; (xxi) a substantial number of skaee eligible for sale by Mr. McMahon and memhsrkis family or trusts established
their benefit, and the sale, or the perceptionassible sales, of those shares could lower ouk gidce; and (xxii) risks related to the relativ
small public “float”of our Class A common stock. In addition, our dénd is dependent on a number of factors, includingpng other thing
our liquidity and historical and projected cashwi]cstrategic plan (including alternative uses opita), our financial results and conditi
contractual and legal restrictions on the paymémtivadends (including under our revolving credicflity), general economic and competi
conditions and such other factors as our Boardigédibrs may consider relevant. The forwéwdking statements speak only as of the da
this Form 10-Q and undue reliance should not beegleon these statements. We undertake no obligadiapdate or revise any forward-
looking statements.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures abut Market Risk

There have been no significant changes to our rhaiddefactors that were previously disclosed im Beport on Form 16 for our fisca
year ended December 31, 20

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Under the direction of our Chairman of the Board &hief Executive Officer and our Chief Financidfi€er, we evaluated our disclosi
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a)ld¥(Rule 15dt5(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded). Based on t
evaluation, our Chairman of the Board and Chiefdatiee Officer and our Chief Financial Officer comged that our disclosure controls .
procedures were effective as of June 30, 2013 chdage in internal control over financial reportoagurred during the quarter endide 3(
2013, that materially affected, or is reasonaidgly to materially affect, such internal contrales financial reporting.

PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in several litigations and claitattwe consider to be in the ordinary course oftmusiness. By its nature, the outcom
litigation is not known but the Company does notrently expect its pending litigation to have a emal adverse effect on our financ
condition, results of operations or liquidity. Weynfrom time to time become a party to other lggateedings.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

We do not believe that there have been any matnaiges to the risk factors previously disclosedur Annual Report on Form Xfor
the year ended December 31, 2012.
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Item 6. Exhibits

(a.) Exhibits

10.10 Employment Agreement between the CompanyMicdidael Luisi dated July 19, 2013.

31.1 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon pursuaat3ection 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (fiedewith).
31.2 Certification by George A. Barrios pursuanggxtion 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (fileddwith).
32.1 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon and GeorgeBarrios pursuant to Section 906 of SarbanespAlct of 2002 (filed herewith).
101.INS XBRL Instance Document*

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document*

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linklea®ocument*

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkba@ecument*

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Downt*

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docuinen

*  Pursuant to Rule 406T of RegulationTSthis interactive data file is deemed not filedpart of a registration statement or prospectu
purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the SecuritiesoA@933, is deemed not filed for purposes of $ecli8 of the Securities Exchange Ac
1934, and otherwise is not subject to liability enthese sections.

37




Table of Contents
SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securtiieshange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly eduhis report to be signed on its behal
the undersigned, thereto duly authorized.

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
(Registrant)

Dated:  August 1, 2013 By:/s/ George A. Barrios
George A. Barrios

Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer
and authorized signatory)
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As of July 19, 2013

Michael Luisi

Dear Michael:

On behalf of WWE (hereinafter “* WWE " or the “ Company "), we are pleased to confirm the terms relative to yaunew
position as President, WWE Studios, effective as danuary 1, 2013. The following sets forth the ters of this Agreemen
(hereinafter referred to as the “ Agreement”).

1. Base Salary and Benefits

(@)

(b)

Base Salary/Reporting Relationshi. Your initial base salary shall be Five Hundred Sevsty-Sever
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($577,500) per annungr such other increased rate as the Chairme
and/or the Compensation Committee of the Board of Dectors (“ Board ") may designate from time t
time (the “ Base Salary”). The Base Salary shall be payable in regular instafients in accordance witl
the Company’s general payroll practices and subject to ordinaryithholdings and deductions. You wil
be considered for a salary increase in calendar ye2014, and each year thereafter, based upon yc
prior year’'s performance evaluation/annual performance review, within managemens sole discretior
All merit increases will be paid out in accordancewith our merit pay-out schedule. You are eligible t
participate annually in the WWE Management Incentive Program, at all times governed by the tern
and conditions as they exist for EVP’s and above.his program is currently based upon the Companys
achievement of its fiscal year financial goals, meared by the Company in its discretion, as well agour
individual performance evaluation. The target bonusfor your position is 50% of your Base Salary
Bonus payments, if earned, are made after the closd the fiscal year and are typically submitted tahe
Compensation Committee for approval before the enaf Q1 of the year following the calendar yee
being reviewed. You shall continue to report diredy to Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer.

Benefits. In addition, you shall be entitled to participate n all employee benefit programs as they ex
from time to time for which executive employees ofhe Company are generally eligible. These benef
currently include group health, medical and dental; short and long term disability benefits; life
insurance; and 401(k) plan participation. You will also continue to be eligible for the Manageme
Incentive Plan and Performance Stock Unit Plan, pusuant to the terms and conditions of th
Company’s 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan each and all as thexist from time to time for Executive Vice
Presidents and above. You will continue to be entéd to four (4) weeks vacation and three (3) persai
days per calendar year. Use and carryover of vacatn days shall be governed by the Company’s




(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

regular vacation policy as it exists from time to ime. The terms of the Company Expen:
Reimbursement Program continue to be in effect.

Studio Incentive Bonus Paymer. Beginning in the calendar year 2013, you shall alsoe eligible for ¢
payment equivalent to a percentage of WWE Studios f@¢rating Income Before Interest, Taxe:
Depreciation and Amortization (* Studios OIBDA "), payable in March of the year following the
calendar year to which this payment is attributable For purposes of calculating Studios OIBDA, a
films initially released in 2012 and prior years wil be excluded;_provided, however, that “The Day” and
the DVD release (or any subsequent release) of “Ntolds Barred” shall be included in Studios OIBDA.

Ancillary Revenues & Studios OIBD/. In addition, Studios OIBDA shall include no less than fifty
percent (50%) of all revenues generated from the aillary exploitation of all films (other than those
expressly excluded in_Section 1(cabove) including, without limitation, consumer products, games
partnership sales and partnerships, etc.; provided however, that the portion of such ancillary revenes
allocated to StudiosOIBDA shall be determined by the Company in good figh and in its sole anc
absolute discretion, subject to the fifty percent§0%) minimum described above.

Studio_Incentive Bonus Payment Percentag. The minimum percentage of Studios OIBDA payabl
annually to you shall be six percent (6%), subjecto achieving the minimum Studios OIBDA targe
amount as set by and mutually agreed upon by you anthe Company at the beginning of each calend
year; provided, however, that in the event you andhe Company are unable to agree after good fai
negotiations, the Company shall determine the WWE t8dios OIBDA target amount in its sole an
reasonable discretion. The maximum payment shall ncexceed 12% of Studios OIBDA annually. A
stated above, the Studio Incentive Bonus Payment ah be subject to a minimum performanc
requirement and maximum payout threshold.

OneTime Performance Stock Unit Award GrantIn addition to the Studio Incentive Bonus Paymer
outlined in Section 1(c), you will receive a ondime Performance Stock Unit (PSU) Award in the gros
amount of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) This grant is contingent upon achieving
minimum FY2013 Studios OIBDA target as set by the @airman in his sole discretion, which may b
lower than but not higher than the current FY2013 $udios OIBDA target. The actual value you receiv
will depend on the number of PSUs earned and the jme of WWE shares at the time the PSUs a
released, but not below $100,000. Earned shares ftiis PSU grant will then vest immediately on Jul
19, 2014 regardless of whether you are still empleg by the Company on the vesting date unless pri
to the vesting date you have resigned or voluntail terminated your employment with the Compan
(other than due to (i) a relocation of your principal duties to a
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locale more than fifty (50) miles from Los AngelesCalifornia; (i) your demotion to a position
materially lower in status than that of a President WWE Studios by the Company, without cause i
defined above; (iii) a material diminution of your primary responsibilities as President, WWE Studio
so that you, in effect, no longer function as an sident, WWE Studios; or (iv) a material breach bythe
Company of the terms of this Agreement) or have beeterminated “for cause” (as defined herein) priol
to the vesting date. This award is governed by theerms and conditions of the WWE 2007 OmnibL
Incentive Plan.

2. Relocation Expenses.

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Moving & Temporary Arrangements. You shall be responsible to take all necessaryegis to secur
suitable arrangements and coordinate with the Compay to set up direct billing, wherever possible
with the Company not to exceed an agreed cap. Anynused portion of this allocation will not be paic
out to you. This allocation shall be paid directlyto the vendors to the extent reasonably possible dns
intended to cover all expenses associated with yopermanent relocation to the Los Angeles, Califorra.

Brokerage Fees. In addition to the amount payable in_Section 2(ajgbove, the Company shall k
responsible for the brokerage fees associated withe sale of your current residence and the purcha
of a California residence, subject to an agreed caplus all closing and legal costs in connection thi
each sale and purchase. The Company will “gross ugiiny amounts payable in_Sections 2(ax 2(b) for
tax purposes.

Resignation & Reimbursemetr. In the event you voluntarily resign your employmat with the Company
for any reason whatsoever before May 1, 2014, yoha| be responsible to reimburse the Company fc
any and all expenses paid by the Company and mad® tyou pursuant to this Section 2. Suc
reimbursement will be prorated based on the number of months worked from May, 2013 through th
last day worked and must be made in full within thity (30) days after the Company provides notice ar
written documentation supporting the amount it claims to be due.

Return of Certain Amounts. In the event the security deposit the Company praded towards temg
housing in Section 2(ajpbove or any other deposits provided by WWE to a tind party to support your
relocation is returned to you at the end of the lese or other arrangement period, you agree to provie
that sum back to WWE within thirty (30) days of receipt, including interest earned on the deposit,
any.




3. _Termination. At all times, you will be an employee-atill, meaning that you may resign your employment tany time
for any, or no reason, and the Company may termina your employment at any time for any, or no reasan

Termination by Company Without Causdn the event your employment is terminated by the&Company
for any or no reason, but without “cause”as defined below, you will receive your then currenBase
Salary (payable in accordance with the Company regular payroll practices) and group health benefs
continuation in the same manner as provided to otheEVP’s and under the same then terms ar
conditions that may change from time to time, for geriod of twelve months (the “Termination Period
") after your termination date, the PSU grant in Setion 1(d) upon vesting (even if the vesting date fi
such PSU grant occurs after the Termination Period)and the full Studio Incentive Bonus Payment fc
the calendar year in which the Termination Period eds and any prior calendar year if not yet paid.

(@)

(i)

(ii)

In addition, if you are terminated by the Company without “cause” for any or no reason a
defined below as of or after July 1 in the calendayear in which such termination is mad
effective, you will also be eligible to receive arp-rated Management Incentive Plal
payment. This payment shall be subject to the stalard terms and conditions then in effec
for the determination by WWE of whether and in whatamount such bonuses will be paid .
the standard time WWE determines eligibility for sich bonuses for active employees. Tt
amount, if any, will then be protated to your last date of employment, and made athe
standard time that WWE pays active employee bonuse$he applicable payment associate
with the Management Incentive Plan will continue to be subject to an individua
performance rating. You will be advised of the apptable individual performance rating to
be used in such calculation that will be applied por to execution of any release and waiv
agreement referenced below.

Such salary and benefit continuation is expresslyonditioned on the following: (A) during
the Termination Period you do not, in any capacity,directly or indirectly, whether as &
consultant, employee, officer, director, partner, nember, principal, shareholder, ol
otherwise, become employed by, enter into a consimiyy arrangement with, or otherwise
perform services for, manage, acquire an ownershim, or participate in the management o
ownership of, a professional wrestling organizatior{ provided , however, that nothing hereir
shall prevent you from acquiring up to 5% of any chss of outstanding equity securities
any company whose equity securities are regularlyraded on a national securities exchant
or on an ‘over-the-counter market’);
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(b)

(c)

(B) during the Termination Period, you do not diredly or indirectly divert or attempt to
divert or discourage any WWE contracted talent fromdoing business or continuing to d
business with WWE; and (C) you execute a general lsase and waiver of claims and otht
obligations in a form satisfactory to the Companyn its sole and absolute discretion, alor
with a re-affirmation of your obligations set out in this offer letter and any other policies o
agreements you execute at the commencement of empteent (including, without limitation,
WWE's Confidentiality/Non Solicitation and Conflict of Interest agreements).

Termination by Company For Cauself you are terminated by WWE for “cause,” WWE will have no
further financial obligation to you as of the dateof the termination. For purposes of the forgoinc
“cause” is defined as: (i) engaging in fraud, deceit, misggopriation, embezzlement or theft agains
WWE or any of its affiliates; (ii) indictment, conviction, or you plead or enter a plea ofiolo contendere
to a felony or crime involving moral turpitude; (iii) violating any provision of your Confidentiality/ Non
Solicitation Agreement; (iv) committing a material violation of any Company policy; (v) committing ¢
material act or omission in the course of performig your duties; and (vi) material failure to adequatly
perform your duties, as determined by the Companyri its sole discretion, which you fail to remedy t
the Company'’s satisfaction in its sole discretion, within thiryy (30) days of your receipt of written notic
thereof and opportunity to cure.

Resignation or Termination by You. You shall further not be entitled to severance ifyou resign ol
voluntarily terminate your employment with the Company, unless you voluntarily resign due to (i)
relocation of your principal duties to a locale moe than fifty (50) miles from Los Angeles, Californd;
(if) your demotion to a position materially lower in status than that of a President, WWE Studios byhe
Company, without cause as defined above; (iii) a nberial diminution of your primary responsibilities
as President, WWE Studios so that you, in effect,onlonger function as an President, WWE Studios; (
(iv) a material breach by the Company of the termsof this Agreement. In the event you clair
subsections (iii) or (iv) apply, you must first pravide the Company with thirty (30) days advance
written notice of your assertion, specifying the bses for the same, and a reasonable opportunity feine
Company to cure what you contend is a material dinmution of your primary responsibilities or a
material breach of this Agreement, as applicable.




Nondisclosure of Confidential Information . The terms of that certain Confidentiality/Non-Solicitation Agreemen

signed by you remain in full force and effect, anére hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Inventions and Patents. The terms of that certain Intellectual Property Release and Waiver signed by you «

January 10, 2011, attached hereto as Exhibit Bremain in full force and effect, and are herebyricorporated hereir
by reference.

Non-Solicitation of Company Employees. The terms of that certain Confidentiality/Non-Solicitation Agreemen

signed by you remain in full force and effect, anére hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Intentionally deleted.

General Provisions

(@)

(b)

(€)

Severability. It is the desire and intent of the parties heretdhat the provisions of this Agreement b
enforced to the fullest extent permissible under th laws and public policies applied in each jurisditon
in which enforcement is sought. Accordingly, if anyparticular provision of this Agreement shall be
adjudicated by a court of competent jurisdiction tobe invalid, prohibited or unenforceable for an
reason, such provision, as to such jurisdiction, lfl be ineffective, without invalidating the remairing
provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validy or enforceability of this Agreement or affecting
the validity or enforceability of such provision inany other jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the foregadng,
if such provision could be more narrowly drawn so a not to be invalid, prohibited or unenforceable i
such jurisdiction, it shall, as to such jurisdiction, be so narrowly drawn, without invalidating the
remaining provisions of this Agreement or affectingthe validity or enforceability of such provision n
any other jurisdiction.

Complete Agreement This Agreement and those documents expressly refed to herein and
attachments hereto constitute the entire agreemenamong the parties and supersede any pri
correspondence or documents evidencing negotiatiobgtween the parties, whether written or oral, an
any and all understandings, agreements or represeations by or among the parties, whether written o
oral, that may have related in any way to the subje matter of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigr. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreenmé shall bind and inure to
the benefit of and be enforceable by you and the Gwany and your/its respective successors, assic
heirs, representatives and estate; provided however, that your rights and obligations under this
Agreement shall




not be assigned without the prior written consent bthe Company in its sole discretion.

(d) Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by and construeth accordance with the laws of th
State of Connecticut without regard to any conflictor choice of law analysis.

(e) Jurisdiction and Venue. You hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submitto the non-exclusive
jurisdiction of any Connecticut State court or fedeal court sitting in the District of Connecticut,
County of Fairfield, and any appellate court from ay thereof, in any action or proceeding arising ot
of or relating to this Agreement or for recognition or enforcement of any judgment, and you herek
irrevocably and unconditionally agree that all clams in respect of any such action or proceeding m
be heard and determined in any such Connecticut Sta court or, to the extent permitted by law, in sub
federal court. You irrevocably waive, to the fulles extent permitted by law, the defense of &
inconvenient forum to the maintenance of such actioor proceeding in any such court. You agree not
commence a claim or proceeding hereunder in a coudther than a Connecticut State court or feder
court located in the District of Connecticut, Couny of Fairfield, except if you have first brought such
claim or proceeding in such Connecticut State courtor federal court located in the District o
Connecticut, County of Fairfield, and such court orcourts have denied jurisdiction over such claim ¢
proceeding.

() Amendment and Waive. The provisions of this Agreement may be amendednd waived only in ¢
writing signed by the Company and you with the saméormalities as was this Agreement, and no cour
of conduct or failure or delay in enforcing the provisions of this Agreement shall affect the validity
binding effect or enforceability of this Agreementor any provision hereof.

(9) Headings. The section headings contained in this Agreement arfor reference purposes only and she
not affect in any way the meaning or interpretationof this Agreement.

(h) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more couatparts, each of which shall b
deemed an original and all of which together shaltonstitute one and the same instrument.

To reflect your acceptance of the terms of this Aggement, please sign in the space indicated below.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

MICHAEL LUISI
By: —_— G e —
N e
Name: ~—— [

Title: 5‘7@. HR




Exhibit 31.1

Certification required by Securities and Exchange At of 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to Semti302 of Sarbane®©xley Act of

2002:
I, Vincent K. McMahon, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Foil®HQ of World Wrestling Entertainment, In
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, néauisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adiher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurég tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial répgy; or caused such internal control over finahoiporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntbds report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls armteutures, as of the end of the period covered tsyréport based on st
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéfé, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte registrans internal contre
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrans' other certifying officer and | have disclosedsédxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @brdwer financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that in@dvmanagement or other employees who have a si@mifrole in the registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: August 1, 2013 By: /s/ Vincent K. McMahon
Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.Z

Certification required by Securities and Exchange At of 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to Semti302 of Sarbane®©xley Act of

2002:
I, George A. Barrios, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Foil®HQ of World Wrestling Entertainment, In
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, néauisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adiher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurég tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh®ubsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) Designed such internal control over financial répgy; or caused such internal control over finahoiporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and pres@ntbds report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls armteutures, as of the end of the period covered tsyréport based on st
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter that has materiallycéfé, or is reasonably likely to materially affettte registrans internal contre
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrans' other certifying officer and | have disclosedsédxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @brdwer financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitasmmmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that in@dvmanagement or other employees who have a si@mifrole in the registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated:  August 1, 2013 By: /s/ George A. Barrios

George A. Barrios
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chairman and CEO and CFO Purst@ant
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBe@d®6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ@f World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (the “Coamy”) for the quarter endetline 3(
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the “Repor¥jncent K. McMahon as Chairman of the Ba
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and @eoh. Barrios as Chief Financial Officer of the Quamy, each hereby certifies, purst
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuargd¢td® 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tteathe best of his or her knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA 1934 as amended; ¢

(2) The information contained in the report fairly mests, in all material aspects, the financial caadiand results of operations of
Company.

By: /sl Vincent K McMahon
Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated:  August 1, 2013

By: /sl George A. Barrios
George A. Barrios
Chief Financial Officer

Dated:  August 1, 2013



